
because it was in their own interest to see that 
this strategic area did not become a hostile base 
in case of war. The United States had learned 
from experience that it inevitably became 
involved in European wars and that to fulfil its 
~esponsibilities it must use its great power by 
mtervening for peace. This was the explanation 
for the desire of certain Governments that United 
States forces should be withdrawn and the 
problem could not really be solved until an 
understanding had been reached between the 
United States and the USSR. Like the Greek 
representative, the delegation of Ecuador declared 
its hope for and faith in a final solution of the 
Greek question which would bring peaceful and 
progressive life to the Greek people. 

The meeting rose at 5.55 p.m. 

HUNDRED AND EIGHTY-THIRD 
MEETING 

Held at the Palais de Chaillot, Paris, on Friday, 
5 November 1948, at 10.30 a.m. 

Chairman : Mr. A. CosTA DU RELS (Bolivia). 

49. Continuation of the discussion on the 
threats to the political independence 
and territorial integrity of Greece 

REPORTS OF THE UNITED NATIONS SPECIAL 
COMMISSION ON THE BALKANS (A/574, A/644, 
AND A/692). 

Discussion on a point of order 

Mr. BEBLER (Yugoslavia) wished to bring 
certain facts to the notice of the First Committee. 
The Government of Yugoslavia had had a film 
made on the Greek child refugees in Yugoslavia. 
It was therefore a documentary film relating 
to the question under discussion, and was really 
a memorandum in pictures. 

The fllm had been given to the Secretariat to 
be shown in one of the rooms at the Palais de 
Chaillot. The time had been fixed for 10 a.m. 
on Friday 5 November, and all delegations had 
been invited. At the last moment, however, 
the Secretary-General had forbidden the showing 
of the film. 

The Yugoslav delegation protested against that 
discriminatory measure. The attitude of the 
Secretariat was the more surprising because the 
rooms at the Palais de Chaillot were regularly 
put at the disposal of the various delegations 
who used them for Press conferences which were 
less objective manifestations of opinion than the 
showing of a documentary film. 

That very regrettable incident might well lead 
to the belief that the Secretary-General was 
influenced by certain delegations. The Yugoslav 
delegation therefore requested the Secretary-

eneral to reconsider his decision. 

The CHAIRMAN declared the inciden closed. 

appel desespere; le Gouvernement des :Etats-Unis 
a agi ainsi dans un esprit de comprehension, et 
aussi parce qu'il est de son interet de veiller a ce 
que cette region strategique ne devienne pas une 
base ennemie en cas de guerre. L'experience a 
montre aux Etats-Unis qu'ils sont inevitablement 
entraines dans les guerres europeennes et que 
pour faire face a leurs responsabilites, ils doivent 
employer leur enorme puissance pour intervenir 
en faveur de la paix. C'est la raison pour laquelle 
certains Gouvernements desirent que les forces 
armees des Etats-Unis soient retirees ; le probleme 
ne peut etre resolu tant qu'il n'y a pas d'accord 
entre les Etats-Unis et l'URSS. Tout comme le 
representant de la Grece, le representant de 
l'Equateur espere que l'on trouvera a ce probleme 
une solution definitive qui puisse apporter la 
paix et la prosperite au peuple grec. 

La seance est levee a 17 h. 55. 

CENT-QUATRE-VINGT-TROISIEME 
SEANCE 

Tenue au Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
le vendredi 5 novembre 1948, d 10 h. 30. 

President: M.A. CosTA DU RELS (Bolivie). 

49. Suite de la discussion sur les menaces 
a l'independance politique eta l'inte
grite territoriale de la Grece 

RAPPORTS DE LA COMMISSION SPECIALE DES 
NATIONS UNIES POUR LES BALKANS (A/574, 
A/644 ET A/692). 

Discussion sur un point d'ordre. 

M. BEELER (Yougoslavie) desire porter certains 
faits a la connaissance de la Premiere Commission. 
Le Gouvernement de Ia Yougoslavie a fait tourner 
un film sur les enfants grecs refugies dans ce pays. 
Ce film a done le caractere d'un document relatif 
a la question en cours de discussion et constitue 
un veritable memorandum filme. 

Ce film confie au Secretaire general en vue d'une 
presentation dans une des salles du Palais de 
Chaillot, devait etre projete a 10 heures ce 
vendredi 5 novembre. Toutes les delegations 
avaient ete conviees. Or, au dernier moment, 
le Secretaire general a interdit la projection. 

La delegation de la Yougoslavie proteste contre 
la mesure discriminatoire dont elle a ete l'objet. 
Cette attitude du Secretaire general est d'autant 
plus surprenante que les locaux du Palais de 
Chaillot sont couramment mis a la disposition des 
differentes delegations pour des conferences de 
presse qui constituent des manifestations moins 
objectives que la projection d'un Ulm 
documentaire. 

Le fait est si regrettable qu'il tendrait a faire 
croire que le Secretaire general subit !'influence de 
certaines delegations. La delegation de la Yougos
Iavie demande done que le Secretaire general 
revienne sur cette decision. 

Le PRESIDENT declare !'incident clos. 

385 
25 



1\Ir. VYSHINSKY (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) said that the facts which had just 
been stated were so serious that the First 
Committee should be provided with the necessary 
clarification. 

The CHAIRMAN ruled that it was a matter 
which should be settled between the repre
sentative of Yugoslavia and the Secretary
General. 

lllr. VYSHI::-lSKY (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) emphasized that the First Committee, 
which was one of the most important organs 
of the United Nations, could not be content 
simply to have the question referred to the 
Secretary-General. The Yugoslav representative 
had made a statement concerning a gross breach 
of the principle of freedom of information : 
the First Committee should therefore request the 
Secretary-General to make a statement or submit 
observations in writing, or else should express 
the hope that the Secretary-General would take 
steps to see that the freedom of information was 
observed. 

Some members of the First Committee had 
intended to see the film lent by the Yugoslav 
delegation in connexion with the present 
discussion. The First Committee was therefore 
directly interested in seeing that the ban was 
removed and a solution found to the question 
in keeping with the dignity of the General 
Assembly of the United Nations. 

l\Ir. KATz-SucHY (Poland) recalled that the 
incident was not the first of its kind. On the 
day the First Committee had begun to examine 
the Greek question, the Secretariat had obtained 
possession of memoranda emanating from General 
I\larkos which had been distributed to the members 
of the First Committee. 

Believing that there might have been a misun
derstanding, the Polish delegation had not drawn 
conclusions from what was then only an isolated 
occurrence. But the two incidents taken together 
threw a disquieting light on their origin. He 
suggested that the Chairman of the First 
Committee should get in touch with the Secretary
General with a view to collecting all the necessary 
information for transmission to the First 
Committee. 

l\Ir. McNEIL (United Kingdom) said he was 
prepared to sympathize with Mr. Behler's anxiety 
and perhaps his indignation, but he did not know 
the facts. No document and no motion had been 
submitted to the First Committee. In the 
circumstances a discussion could hardly be 
opened in the dark. The Chairman of the First 
Committee could discuss the matter with the 
Secretary-General to decide whether a debate 
would be necessary. In any case no debate 
could usefully be begun without some provision 
on the agenda and some kind of documentation 
and pertinent proposals. 

The CHAIRMAN suggested that it might be 
advisable to postpone to the next meeting, or 
perhaps to the meeting on the following morning, 

M. VYCHINSKY (Union des Republiques socia
listes sovietiques) declare que les faits qui viennent 
d'etre relates sont si graves que la Premiere 
Commission doit recevoir les eclaircissements 
necessaires. 

Le PRI~SIDENT indique qu'il s'agit d'une question 
a regler entre le representant de la y ougoslavie et 
le Secretaire general. 

M. VYCHINSKY (Union des Republiques socia
listes sovietiques) souligne que la Premiere 
Commission, qui est l'un des organes les plus 
importants de !'Organisation des Nations Unies, 
ne pent se contcnter du renvoi pur et simple de 
la question au Secretaire general. Le representant 
de la Yougoslavie a fait une declaration relative 
a une grossiere violation du principe de la liberte 
de !'information. La premiere Commission doit 
done demander au Secretaire general de faire 
une declaration ou de presenter des observations 
par ecrit, ou bien exprimer l'cspoir que le Secre
taire general fasse en sorte que la liberte de 
!'information soit respectee. 

Un certain nombre de membres de la Premiere 
Commission comptaient assister a la projection 
du film presente par la delegation de la Yougo
slavie, en liaison avec la discussion en cours. La 
Premiere Commission est done directement inte
rcssee a ce que !'interdiction soit levee pour que 
la question rec;oive une solution conforme a la 
dignite de l'Assemblce generale des Nations Unies. 

M. KATz-SucHY (Pologne) rappelle que 
!'incident qui vient de se produire n'est pas le 
premier de son espece. Le jour oi1 la Premiere 
Commission abordait l'examen de la question 
grecque, le Secretariat s'est empare de memo
randums emanant du general Markos et qui 
avaient ete distribues aux membres de la Premiere 
Commission. 

Pensant qu'il pouvait s'agir d'un malentendu, 
la delegation de la Pologne s'etait abstenue de 
tirer des conclusions de ce qui n'etait alors qu'un 
fait isole. Mais le rapprochement des deux incidents 
jette une lumiere facheuse sur leur origine. 
M. Katz-Suchy suggere que le President de la 
Premiere Commission prenne contact avec le 
Secretaire general afin de recueillir, aux fins de 
transmission a la Premiere Commission, tous les 
elements d'information necessaires. 

M. McNEIL (Royaume-Uni) declare qu'il serait 
pret a partager !'inquietude et peut-etre !'indi
gnation de M. Bebler, mais que les donnees du 
probleme font defaut. En efiet, aucun document 
n'a ete soumis a la Premiere Commission, aucune 
motion n'a ete presentee. II ne convient done pas, 
dans ces circonstances, de s'engager dans un 
debat a l'aveuglette. Le President de la Premiere 
Commission pourrait s'entretenir avec le Secre
taire general afin d'etablir l'eventuelle necessite 
d'un debat. Mais de toute maniere, celui-ci ne 
pourrait utilement s'ouvrir que lorsque l'ordre 
du jour l'aurait prealablement annonce, avec 
indication des documents et propositions qui s'y 
rap portent. 

Le PRESIDENT declare qu'il pourrait etre 
opportun de remettre a la prochaine seance, ou 
peut-etre a celle du lendemain matin, la discussion 

386 



the discussion on the Yugoslav representative's 
statement so as to enable the Secretary-General 
to provide the appropriate explanations. 

:rv1r. VYSHINSKY (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics), while approving in principle the 
procedure suggested by the Chairman of the 
First Committee, declared that the delay proposed 
appeared to him unjustified. The matter might 
be speedily disposed of if the incident described 
had actually taken place, and still more speedily 
if it had not. 

All those who advocated freedom of information 
were bound to feel real anxiety. \Vhat, indeed, 
was more objective than a film ? They were 
at a loss to find the reasons why the film was 
banned, because the Secretary-General could 
not possibly be against the freedom of information. 

; Whatever indignation· might be felt at the 
statement of the facts that had been reported, 
it must be hoped that it was only a misunder
standing which would be speedily cleared up. 
Perhaps the Assistant Secretary-General in charge 
of Security Council Affairs, who was present, 
might inform the First Committee before the 
end of the meeting. That would prevent 
unnecessary delay. 

Mr. SoBOLEV (Assistant Secretary-General in 
charge of Security Council Affairs) said that he 
would certainly obtain the necessary information 
in the course of the day. A statement could 
therefore be made that day by the Secretary
General or his representative. 

Continuation of the general discussion 

Mr. DuLLES (United States of America) referred 
to the diversion which the Soviet Union had 
tried to create by charging the United States 
with wishing to establish a military base in 
Greece in pursuance of a plan for world mastery. 
The United States delegation declared empha
tically that that was a false and malicious 
interpretation of the facts. Facts spoke more 
clearly than any denial, however clear it might be. 
Within the past thirty years the United States 
had twice been one of the principal victors in 
world wars with a vast military power extending 
far beyond its borders, but it had not attempted 
to expand its territory. On the contrary, the 
national domain had actually contracted. After 
the First World War the United States had 
desired neither territory nor reparations, but had 
been satisfied to have helped to save the free 
institutions of Europe. Again, of the three 
million men, 17,000 aircraft, 14,000 tanks, 
and 5,000 vessels which made up the American 
forces in Europe at the end of the Second World 
War, there remained today in Europe perhaps 
3 per cent. In Greece itself, there were only 
some 500 men, and none of those were combat 
soldiers. 

The withdrawal of United States forces had 
been all the more remarkable because it had 
not been accompanied by the organization of 

sur la declaration faite par le representant de la 
Yougoslavie afin que Ie Secretaire general puisse 
fournir ses explications. 

M. VrcHINSKY (Union des Republiques socia
listes sovietiques) tout en approuvant en principe 
la procedure suggeree par le President de la 
Premiere Commission, declare que les delais 
envisages lui paraissent injustifies. L'incident est 
susceptible d'une solution rapide s'il a effecti
vement eu lieu ; et d'une solution plus rapide 
encore s'il n'a pas eu lieu. 

Tous ceux qui sont en faveur de la liberte de 
!'information ne peuvent manquer d'eprouver une 
reelle anxiete. Qu'y a-t-il en effet de plus objectif 
que l'image filmee ? On se perd en conjectures 
sur les motifs qui ont pu presider a la decision 
d'interdiction, car on ne peut soup<;onner le 
Secretaire general d'etre un ennemi de la liberte 
de !'information. 

Quelque indignation que l'on puisse ressentir 
a l'enonce des faits qui ont ete rapportes, il faut 
done souhaiter qu'il ne s'agisse que d'un malen
tendu susceptible d'une solution rapide. Or, le 
Secretaire general adjoint charge du Departement 
des affaires du Conseil de securite, est present et 
pourrait sans doute fournir certaines informations 
a la Premiere Commission au plus tard a la fin 
de la presente seance. Ainsi eviterait-on des delais 
injustifies. 

M. SoBoLEV (Secretaire general adjoint, charge 
du Departement des affaires du Conseil de securite) 
declare qu'il sera certainement en possession des 
elements d'information necessaires dans le courant 
de la journee. Une declaration pourra done etre 
faite ce jour meme par le Secretaire general ou 
par son representant. 

Reprise de la discussion generale. 

M. DuLLES (Etats-Unis d'Amerique) se refere 
a la diversion que l'URSS a tente d'operer en 
accusant les Etats-Unis de vouloir etablir une 
base militaire en Grece dans le cadre d'un plan 
de domination mondiale. La delegation des Etats
Unis proclame categoriquement qu'il s'agit la 
d'une interpretation fausse et malicieuse des faits. 
Or, ceux-ci parlent plus haut encore que tout 
dementi, aussi net qu'il puisse etre. En effet, les 
Etats-Unis qui, au cours des dernieres trente 
annees, se sont trouves deux fois au premier rang 
des vainqueurs d'un conflit mondial, avec une 
vaste puissance militaire debordant largement 
les limites de leur territoire, n'ont pas essaye 
d'agrandir leur territoire. Au contraire, les 
frontieres nationales des Etats-Unis n'ont fait que 
se contracter. D'une part, apres la premiere 
guerre mondiale, les Etats-Unis n'ont voulu ni 
territoire ni reparations, contents d'avoir sau-:e 
les libertes de l'Europe. D'autre part, des tro1s 
millions d'hommes, des 17.000 avions, 14.000 tanks 
et 5.000 vaisseaux que comptaient les forces 
americaines en Europe, a l'issue de la deuxieme 
guerre mondiale, il ne reste plus aujourd'hui en 
Europe que 3 pour 100 peut-etre. En Grece meme, 
il n'y a que 500 hommes et, parmi cux, aucun 
combattant. 

II s'cst agi d'une evacuation d'autant .plus 
remarquable qu'elle ne s'est pas accompagnee ~e 
la constitution d'unc cinquieme colonne chargee 

387 



a fifth column to impose the will of the United 
States after the departure of its armed forces. 
The action taken by the United States catego
rically disposed of the charge of alleged American 
aims at world domination. It was true that 
disarmament in the United States had been 
checked, but that was due to the fact that the 
victory over Germany and Japan had not put 
an end to the fears of the free peoples. Those 
fears were caused partly by the present impotence 
of the international Organisation, due to the 
crippling effects of the abuse of the veto in the 
Security Council, which, moreover, lacked military 
power. Another cause of those fears was to 
be found in the tortuous means which were used 
to frighten free countries. 

Until that situation had been remedied, the 
United States would continue to remain strong ; 
it had no apology to make for being strong, 
because its strength was not to be used for selfish 
interests, but in the interests of freedom and of 
all who renounced violence and terrorism and 
adhered to the principles proclaimed in the 
Atlantic Charter. No doubt that strength of 
the United States was displeasing to some. But 
who could say he feared it ? 

Albania, Bulgaria and Yugoslavia had expressed 
their dissatisfaction with the military assistance 
sent by the United States to Greece. But they 
had a very simple means of putting an end to that 
assistance : they had only to comply with the 
solemn recommendations of the General Assembly 
and stop encouraging and giving shelter, aid and 
comfort to the Greek partisans and Communist 
rebels ; finally, they had only to re-establish 
good-neighbourly relations with the Greek Govern
ment. For their part, after eight years of violence, 
the Greek people desired only to devote themselves 
to the tasks of reconstruction. Any Greek govern
ment which based its policy, in respect of military 
expenditure, on considerations other than those of 
independence, territorial integrity and interna 
security, would forfeit for the country the support 
and sympathy it now enjoyed. 

Turning to the four-Power draft resolution 
(A/C.l /352), Mr. Dulles said that attempts had 
been made to discredit its conclusion concerning 
the assistance given to the Greek partisans and 
rebels by Greece's northern neighbours. But the 
unanimity shown in the Special Committee on the 
Balkans over its findings should cut short any 
argument, particularly as both the General Assem
bly and the First Committee had too large a 
membership and were too busy to act as a court 
.of justice and weigh all the evidence. 

Throughout a whole year the Special Com
mittee had undertaken factual observations and 
had questioned hundreds of witnesses. It was 
better qualified than any other other body to 
evaluate the nature and reliability of the evidence 
it had heard. It was particularly inadmissible 
to speak contemptuously of the report of the 
Special Committee, which was a competent, hard
working and conscientious organ, whose members 
had endured much personal risk and hardship 
in order that the Assembly should acquire a 
knowledge of the facts through an agency of its 
.own choosing. 

de faire respecter la volonte des Etats-Unis apres 
le depart de ses forces armees. Les mesures prises 
par les :Etats-Unis dementent formellement I' accu
sation relative a de soi-disant aspirations ameri
caines a Ia domination mondiale. Sans doute, le 
desarmement americain a-t-il ete suspendu, mais 
cela est du au fait que la victoire sur l'Allemagne 
et le Japan n'a pas mis fin au sentiment de crainte 
eprouvee par les peuples libres. Cette crainte 
provient en partie de !'impuissance actuelle de 
!'Organisation internationale, en raison de Ia 
paralysie dont l'exercice abusif du droit de veto 
a frappe le Conseil de securite qui, d'autre part, 
ne dispose pas de forces militaires. Une autre 
cause de ce sentiment de crainte peut etre trouvee 
dans les moyens tortueux dont on se sert pour 
effrayer les pays libres. 

Tant qu'il n'aura pas ete porte remede a cette 
situation, les Etats-Unis ne renonceront pas a 
rester forts et ils n'ont pas a s'excuser d'etre 
puissants, car leur puissance n'est pas au service 
d'interets ego!stes mais des forces de la liberte 
et de quiconque renonce aux methodes de violence 
et de terreur, et se conforme aux principes enonces 
notamment dans Ia Charte de !'Atlantique. Sans 
doute, cette puissance des Etats-Unis deplait-elle 
a certains. Mais qui pourrait dire qu'il en a peur ? 

L'Albanie, Ia Bulgarie et Ia Yougoslavie ont 
exprime leur mecontentement de !'aide militaire 
apportee par les Etats-Unis a la Grece. Mais elles 
ont un moyen bien simple pour mettre fin a cette 
aide : ils n'ont qu'a se conformer aux recomman
dations solennelles de l' Assemblt!e generale et 
a cesser d'encourager, d'abriter, d'aider et de 
reconforter les partisans grecs et les rebelles 
communistes ; elles n'ont enfin qu'a retablir des 
relations de bon voisinage avec le Gouvernement 
grec. De son cote, le peuple grec, apres huit annees 
de violence, n'aspire qu'a se consacrer aux taches 
de Ia reconstruction. Un Gouvernement grec, 
dont la politique en matiere de budget militaire 
s'inspirerait de considerations autres que l'inde
pendance etl'integriteterritoriale d'une part, etl'or
dreinterieur d'autre part, alieneraitaupays l'appui 
et les sympathies dont il beneficie actuellement. 

En ce qui concerne le projet de resolution des 
quatre Puissances (A/C.l/352), on s'est evertue a 
ruiner ses conclusions relatives a !'aide apportee 
aux partisans et aux. rebelles grecs par les voisins 
du nord. Mais l'unanimite qui s'est manifestee 
au sein de la Commission speciale pour Ies Balkans 
sur ses conclusions de fait ne devrait-elle pas 
couper court a toute discussion, d'autant que ni 
I' Assemblee generale, ni Ia Premiere Commission, 
trop nombreuses et trap occupees, ne peuvent 
jouer Ie role d'un tribunal et peser tous les 
temoignages ? 

La Commission speciale, au cours d'un an 
d'efforts, s'est livree a des observations proprement 
dites eta interroge des centaines de temoins. Elle 
est mieux qualifiee que quiconque pour apprecier 
Ia qualite et le bien-fonde des temoignages qu'elle 
a entendus. Il est particulierement inadmissible 
d'user de termes meprisants a l'egard du rapport 
de Ia Commission speciale, qui est un organisme 
competent, laborieux et consciencieux do~t _Ies 
membres ·ont couru bien des dangers, sub1 bien 
des epreuves a fin que I' Assemblee ait connaissa~ce 
des faits par l'entremise d'un organe de son chorx. 



In view of the paragraph in the Special Com
mittee's report (A/574) concerning the assistance 
provided by Albania, Bulgaria and Yugoslavia 
to the Greek partisans, it only remained for the 
Committee to decide upon the action required. 
Everyone regretted that there was no quick 
remedy for the situation, but the prolongation 
of the powers of the Special Committee appeared 
to be the only possible course, and was, moreover, 
in accordance with the recommendations of 
the Special Committee itself. 

If the northern neighbours of Greece were 
willing to co-operate with the Assembly and with 
the Special Committee, a more constructive task 
might be given to the latter. But, in spite of 
moving appeals, those countries persisted in their 
attitude of non-co-operation. As that attitude 
might change, however, the four Powers were 
willing to include in their draft resolution an 
additional provision authorizing the Special 
Committee to have recourse to the good offices of 
one or more persons, who would attempt to 
promote the co-operation of Albania, Bulgaria 
and Yugoslavia with Greece. Thus some possi
bilities of reconciliation would have been created, 
in accordance with the views expressed by the 
representatives of Pakistan and Brazil, and with 
the spirit of the Australian draft resolution 
(A/C.l /362). 

The Assembly, however, would have to rely 
especially upon its power to establish the facts, 
and in this way to influence public opinion and 
the policies of the various countries. As it was, 
if the United States was able to assist Greece 
to the extent it did at present, that was partly 
due to the fact that the Special Committee's 
work had helped to enlighten; American public 
opinion. Even the efforts of certain delegations 
to discredit the findings of the Special Committee 
only emphasized the importance of that means 
which the General Assembly had of exposing 
all threats to peace. 

The United States delegation considered that 
the four-Power draft resolution, which might have 
to be modified to take into account such construc
tive efforts as those of the Australian delegation, 
was the wisest course to adopt. That draft 
resolution was based mainly upon the reports of 
the Special Committee, which had emerged 
unscathed from the violent attacks made on them. 
The United States adhered, for its own part, to 
the course recommended by the Special Com
mittee and proposed to indicate its position later 
regarding the various amendments which had 
been proposed. 

Mr. BELT (Cuba) noted the length and sterile 
nature of the debate. Moreover monstrous 
accusations had been made ; two great Powers, 
for example, had been accused of intervention in 
the internal affairs of Greece by the represen
tative of a third great Power, which had itse1.f 
ntervened in the internal affairs of its neighbour 

However, the essential task was to find a conci
liatory solution of the delicate problem of ~reece. 
As a prominent statesman had recently smd, the 
world resembled a nervous patient, whose com-

En presence du paragraphe du rapport de fa: 
Commission speciale, relatif a l'aide apportee aux 
partisans grecs par l'Albanie, la Bulgarie et la 
Yougoslavie (A/574), il ne reste plus qu'a decider 
de !'action appropriee. Que l'on ne puisse apportel: 
un prompt remede ala situation, c'est ce que tout 
le monde deplore, mais la prorogation des pouvoirs 
de la Commission speciale constitue le seul parti 
possible et elle est d'ailleurs conforme aux 
recommandations de la Commission speciale 
elle-meme. 

Si les voisins septentrionaux de la Grece' 
consentaient a cooperer avec l' Assemblee et avec 
le Commission speciale, celle-ci pourrait se voir 
attribuer une tache plus constructive. Mais, 
malgre d'emouvants appels, ces pays persistent. 
dans leur attitude de non-cooperation. En vue~ 
toutefois d'une modification eventuelle de cette 
attitude, les quatre Puissances acceptent d'inserer 
dans leur projet de resolution une disposition 
supplementaire permettant a la Commission 
speciale de recourir aux bons offices d'une ou 
plusieurs personnalites qui chercheraient eventuel
lement a faciliter la cooperation de 1' Albanie, de 
la Bulgarie et de la Yougoslavie avec la Grece. 
Ainsi, se trouveraient offertes certaines possibilites 
de reconciliation conformes aux vues exprimees 
notamment par les representants du Pakistan et 
du Bresil et a !'esprit du projet de resolution de 
1' Australie (A/C.l/362). 

Toutefois, l' Assemblee devra surtout compter 
sur son pouvoir d'etablir les faits et d'agir ainsi 
sur !'opinion publique et sur la politique des 
differents pays. Deja, si les Etats-Unis peuvent 
aider la Grece dans la mesure oil ils le font actuel
lement, cela est du en partie au fait que les efforts 
de la Commission Speciale ont contribue a eclairer 
!'opinion amencaine. Et les efforts memes 
accomplis par certaines delegations en vue 
d'ebranler les conclusions de .la Commission 
speciale ne font que souligner !'importance de 
cette faculte qu'a I' Assemblee generale de denoncer 
toutes les menaces a la paix. 

La delegation des Etats-Unis considere que Ie 
projet de resolution des quatre Puissances, auquel 
pourraient etre apportees certaines modifications 
destinees a tenir compte par exemple des efforts 
constructifs de la delegation de l' Australie, 
constitue le parti le plus sage. Ce projet de reso
lution repose pour l'essentiel sur les rapports de 
la Commission speciale qui sont sortis indemnes 
des violentes attaques dont ils out ete !'objet. La 
delegation des Etats-Unis s'en tient, en •ce qui 
la concerne, a la ligne de conduite recommandee 
par la Commission speciale et elle precisera 
ulterieurement sa position a l' egard des differents 
amendements qui ont ete presentes. 

M. BELT (Cuba) souligne la longueur et la 
sterilite des debats. De plus, des accusations 
monstrueuses ont ete formulees ; deux grandes 
Puissances ont ete accusees d'intervention dans 
les affaires interieures de la Grece par le repre
sentant d'une autre grande Puissance qui, elle
meme, est intervenue dans les affaires interieures 
de ses voisins. 

L'essentiel, toutefois, c'est de trouver une 
solution de conciliation au probleme delicat de 
la Grece. Car, ainsi qu'un eminent homme d'~tat 
le disait recemment, le monde est semblable a un 

389 



plaint, namely the cold war, might drive him to 
suicide. 

The recommendations of the General Assembly 
did not even carry any moral authority. Had 
not a mediator sent off to supervise the execution 
of a decision by the General Assembly been 
murdered by a group of t errorists ? 

Two draft resolutions were at present before 
the First Committee. The delegation of Cuba 
would no doubt vote for the draft resolution put 
forward by the four great Powers. But, if that 
resolution were adopted, the General Assembly 
would find itself almost in the same position as 
a year before. The Special Committee had 
undoubtedly accomplished a magnificent task 
within the scope of its terms of reference. But, 
in adopting the draft resolution of the four 
Powers, in connexion with which the United 
States representative had announced his willing
ness to accept amendments and suggestions, 
particular attention should be paid to the sugges
tion made by the representative of Ecuador, 
subsequently taken up by the representative of 
Australia in the form of a proposal. In view of 
the restricted scope of the General Assembly's 
recommendations, its aim should be rather to 
become a centre of conciliation for parties involved 
in an international dispute. 

Mr. McNEIL (United Kingdom) observed that 
a number of delegations had indulged in violent 
language, not on the present occasion against 
Mr. Markos, but against members of the First 
Committee, including a distinguished soldier, 
prominent diplomats and loyal servants of the 
United Nations, who had been described as 
lackeys and instruments of certain Powers. 
Attempts had been made to confuse the debate. 
Thus, in the criticisms levelled by some dele
gations against the members of the Special 
Committee, the Australian delegation had been 
placed on a pedestal. While Australia might 
frequently be regarded in that light, Mr. Vyshinsky 
was well aware that the Australian was not the 
only delegation to question the evidence in the 
present case ; Australia, like France and the 
United Kingdom, had upheld the principle that 
the evidence should only be considered when 
clearly established. Furthermore, it must be 
emphasized that the weakness of certain witnesses 
was known to Mr. Vyshinsky only through the 
information provided by the Special Committee 
itself, to whose honesty and impartiality he had 
paid an implicit and unwitting tribute. Like an 
honest witness, the Special Committee had been 
careful to point out the obstacles encountered in 
the execution of its task. 

Nor was it only the Special Committee which 
Mr. Vyshinsky attempted to discredit, but 
Mr. McNeil himself. In the case of Protocol M, 
to which Mr. Vyshinsky had referred, it was abso
lutely untrue to say that he, Mr. McNeil, had 
first stated without any reservations that it was 
authentic, Qnly to admit later that it was a 
complete forgery. He had in fact stated at the 
outset in the House of Commons that, on the basis 
of the information which the Foreign Office then 

malade des nerfs que son etat de sante, en !'occur
rence la guerre froide, pourrait bien amener au 
suicide. 

Les recommandations de l'Assemblee generale 
n'ont meme pas de force morale. N'a-t-on pas 
vu un mediateur envoye pour presider a la mise 
en reuvre d'une decision de l'Assemblee generale 
assassine par un groupe de terroristes ? 

La Premiere Commission se trouve en presence 
de deux projets de resolution. La delegation de 
Cuba votera sans doute pour le projet de resolution 
des quatre Puissances. Mais si cette resolution est 
adoptee, l'Assemblee generale se trouvera presque 
ramenee a la situation de l'an dernier. Sans doute 
la Commission speciale a-t-elle accompli une 
tache magniftque dans le cadre des instructions 
qui lui avaient ete donnees. Mais, en adoptant 
le projet de resolution des quatre Puissances, au 
sujet duquel le representant des Etats-Unis a 
declare qu'il accepterait certains amendements 
ou certaines suggestions, il conviendrait de prendre 
en consideration toute particuliere la suggestion 
faite par la dch~gation de l'Equateur et reprise 
sous la forme d'une proposition par le representant 
de l'Australie. Eu egard a la portee limitee des 
recommandations de I' AssemblCe generale, celle-ci 
doit plutot s'attacher a devenir un centre de 
conciliation pour les parties a un differend 
international. 

M. McNEIL (Royaume-Uni) constate que 
certaines delegations se sont livrees a des violences 
de langage non plus cette fois contre M. Markos, 
mais contre des membres de la Premiere 
Commission parmi lesquels, un valeureux soldat, 
des diplomates distingues, et de fideles serviteurs 
de !'Organisation, que l'on a qualifies de laquais 
et d'instruments de certaines Puissances. D'une 
maniere generale, l'on s'est efforce d'introduire 
la confusion dans les debats. C'est ainsi que dans 
le jugement que certaines delegations ont porte 
sur les membres de la Commission speciale, on 
a place la delegation de I' Australie sur un piedestal. 
Sans doute ce jugement est-il frequemment 
justine; mais en !'occurrence M. Vychinsky 
n'ignorc pas que 1' Australie n'a pas ete la seule 
delegation a mettre en doute certains temoignages.: 
l'Australie, comme la France et le Royaume-Um, 
a pose en principe que les temoignages ne seraient 
pris en consideration que lorsqu'ils etaient 
clairement etablis. D'ailleurs, il faut souligner 
que les faiblesses de certains temoins ne sont 
connues de M. Vychinsky que par les indications 
fournies a cet cgard par la Commission Speciale 
elle-meme, a l'honnetete et a l'impartialite de 
laquelle M. Vychinsky rend ainsi un hommage 
implicite et bien involontaire. De fait, la 
Commission Speciale, en temoin fidele, a tenu a 
indiquer les obstacles auxquels elle s'est heurtee 
dans l'accomplissement de sa tache. 

Ce n'est pas seulement la Commission speciale 
que M. Vychinsky s'est efforce de deconsiderer 
mais aussi M. McNeil lui-meme. Mais, dans le 
cas du Protocole auquel M. Vychinsky a fait 
allusion il est absolument inexact de dire que 
M. McNeil n'a tout d'abord affirme sans reserve 
qu'il etait authentique que pour recon~~tr.e 
ensuite qu'il s'agissait d'un faux total. En reahte, 
M. McNeil avait declare tout d'abord a Ia Chambre 
.des Communes que, sur la base des renseignements 

390 



possessed, there were no concrete reasons to 
believe that the document was not authentic. 
But he had gone on the say that it had been 
decided to make the most exhaustive investi
gations, which eventually led to the discovery 
that the author of the document was a German 
national, not employed by the Government of the 
United Kingdom. He had added that the 
statements made by that individual were by no 
means convincing and that the question of the 
authenticity of the document remained in doubt. 

Whether the document was authentic or not, 
its prophetic value was undeniable and events 
not only in Germany but in other countries of 
Western Europe had coincided most closely with 
what the document had predicted. Mr. McNeil 
went on to deal with a reference made by 
Mr. Vyshinsky, in his second speech on the Greek 
question in the First Committee (176th meeting), 
to a statement by Mr. McNeil on the United 
Kingdom's strategic interests in Greece. What 
Mr. McNeil had in fact said was : " It is said that 
my Government has a strategic interest in this 
country. That may be so ". 

l\Ir. VYSHINsi-:Y (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) said that it was" certainly" so. 

Mr. McNEIL (United Kingdom) asserted .he had 
said " That may be so. It certainly is true that 
my Government hopes to have in this country 
of Greece, a friendly Government, as we hope 
indeed to have friendly Governments in all 
countries. " The purpose of his statement at 
that time had been to show that it mattered little 
whether or not the Government of the United 
Kingdom had strategic interests in Greece. What 
mattered was that the United Kingdom, like other 
countries following a similar policy in Greece, had 
proved that it gave primary consideration not to 
its own interests, but to those of Greece and of 
the Greek people. The Government of the United 
Kingdom had accordingly attempted to ensure 
that fair elections were held in Greece in March 
1946, whereas the Government of the USSR had 
declined to take any part in their supervision. 

Mr. Vyshinsky had also alleged that he, 
Mr. McNeil, had kept in his own pocket a docu
ment dealing with directives issued by General 
Markos. It was actually an official document, 
the number of which could be easily ascertained. 

Direct observation had established beyond all 
doubt that certain actions had been directed 
against Greece from outside. Even if 70 per 
cent of the 700 interrogations of witnesses and 90 
reports of the Special Committee were set aside, 
the substantial charges were proved. The 
observers of the Special Committee had acutally 
seen for themselves guerrillas crossing the fron
tiers between Greece and Albania on ten different 
occasions ; on thirteen occasions they had observed 
firing into Greece from the Albanian frontier ; on 
three occasions guerrillas had been observed 
crossing the Greek-Yugoslav border, and shots 
had been fired from Yugoslavia in the direction 

alors a la disposition du Foreign''COffice, il n'y 
avait pas de raisons positives pour penser que 
le document ne flit pas authentique. Toutefois 
M. McNeil avait ajoute que la decision avait ete 
prise de se livrer a l'enquete la plus complete. 
Cette enquete aboutit finalement a la decouverte 
du fait que l'auteur de ce document etait une 
personne de nationalite allemande, qui n'etait pas 
au service du Gouvernement britannique. 
M. McNeil avait encore ajoute que les declarations 
de cette personne n'etaient nullement convain
cantes et que la question de l'authenticite du 
document restait en doute. 

Quoi qu'il en soit de l'authenticite du document, 
sa valeur prophetique demeure indeniable, tant 
le deroulement des evenements dans differents 
pays europeens a coincide avec ses predictions. 
Le representant de la Grande-Bretagne se refere 
ensuite a !'allusion faite par M. Vychinsky, dans 
sa deuxieme intervention a la Premiere Com
mission sur la question grecque (176e seance) a 
une declaration de M. McNeil relative aux interets 
strategiques du Royaume-Uni en Grece. En fait, 
void ce qu'a dit M. McNeil : << L'on dit que mon 
Gouvernement a un interet strategique dans ce 
pays. Peut-etre en est-il ainsi. >> 

M. VvcHINSKY (Union des Republiques socia
listes sovietiques) declare qu'il en est << certai
nement >> ainsi. 

M. McNEIL (Royaume-Uni) affirme avoir dit 
« Peut-etre en est-il ainsi. >> Mais ce qui est 
certain c'est que mon Gouvernement espere que 
la Grece, comme d'ailleurs tous les pays, aura un 
Gouvernement anime de sentiments amicaux a 
son egard. >> Le but meme de !'intervention 
de M. McNeil a ce moment-la etait de montrer 
que peu importait de savoir si le Royaume-Uni 
avait ou non des interets strategiques en Grece ; 
ce qui importait, c'etait que le Royaume-Uni, 
parmi d'autres pays qui se sont associes a une 
meme politique en Grece, avait prouve qu'il plac;ait 
au premier plan non ses propres interets mais les 
inten~ts de la Grecc et ceux du peuple grec. C'est 
ainsi que le Gouvernement du R~yau~e-U~i s:est 
efforce de faire en sorte que des electwns smceres 
aient lieu en Grece en mars 1946, alors que le 
Gouvernement de l'URSS a refuse de participer 
au controle de ces elections. 

M. McNeil rappclle que M. Vychinsky lui a 
aussi reproche d'avoir garde dans sa poche le 
document relatif a certaines instructions donnees 
par M. Markos. II indique qu'en realite, il s'agit 
d'un document officiel dont la cote peut etre 
facilement retrouvee. 

M. McNeil constate que des observations 
directes ont etabli indubitablement que certaines 
actions ont ete dirigees de l'exterieur contre la 
Grece. A supposer meme que l'on reje~te 70 
pour 100 des 700 intcrrogatoires de temoms et 
des 90 rapports de la Commission speciale, les 
observateurs de la Commission speciale ont pu 
constater de visu a dix reprises que des par~isan~ 
ont traverse la frontiere, venant d'Albame; a 
treize reprises, que des tirs ont ete .effectues 
d'Albanie contre la Grece; a trois repnses, que 
la frontiere yougoslave a ete franch.ie. ~m: les 
partisans et que des coups de feu ont ete ti~es de 
Yougoslavie vers le territoire grec. Une fOis, les 

391 



of Greece. On one occasion observers had been 
under fire from a Yugoslav frontier post. On the 
Bulgarian frontier observers had noted three 
instances of guerrillas crossing the Greek-Bul
garian frontier, while two observers had been 
wounded by shell fire from Bulgaria. Those 
observations did not relate to isolated incidents but 
to a series of incidents witnessed up to the middle of 
October, which proved direct intervention against 
Greece on the part of Albania, Bulgaria and Yugo
slavia. No useful purpose would be served by 
pretending that the Governments of those States 
were not aware of the facts, since under interna
tional law, a Government was responsible for what 
took place within its borders and particularly for 
what took place on its borders. None of the 
arguments used by Mr. Vyshinsky had refuted 
the above-mentioned facts which had been 
established by direct observation. 

Furthermore, the non-co-operation of Greece's 
northern neighbours, and the non-co-operation 
of General Markos with the Special Committee, 
in respect of the observation groups, provided 
indirect corroboration of such aid, since, if those 
three States and the guerrillas had had nothing to 
hide, they would not have refused to co-operate. 

Moreover, none of the delegations supporting 
the USSR delegation had said or even implied 
that if intervention were proved, it would deplore 
it. Nor had they said that they disapproved of 
the principle of intervention. That was not 
surprising, since non-intervention would be con
trary to their general policy. There was no need 
to be a great prophet to forecast that neither 
Yugoslavia, Czechoslovakia, Poland, the Byelo
russian SSR, the Ukrainian SSR, Bulgaria nor 
Albania would ever admit their disapproval of the 
above-mentioned border incidents, if proved, 
since those incidents were in fact instruments of 
the foreign policy of certain States, which had 
an interest in undermining the economic inde
pendence of Greece and in overthrowing the 
present Greek Government. 

As Mr. Dulles had observed, the difficulty 
confronting the Special Committee had not been 
so much to find proof of intervention by Greece's 
three northern neighbours, but to bring those 
activities to an end, with the unfortunate conse
quences they involved for Greece. 

There were three points to be borne in mind : 
(1) if the First Committee considered that inter
vention in Greece's internal affairs had been 
established, it had an obligation to give at least 
moral support to Greece ; (2) if there was any 
hope of reconciliation, some means must be 
found of realizing that hope. While the United 
Kingdom delegation had not yet studied the 
Australian draft resolution (A/C.1 /362), it fully 
understood its purpose, but it was of the opinion 
that the resolution should be considered after the 
joint four-Power draft resolution. As regards 
the New Zealand draft resolution, which proposed 
the setting up of two distinct bodies, one an 
observing body and the other a committee of 
good offices, the United Kingdom delegation 
considered such a proposal undesirable, since the 
members of the Special Committee should be men 
of sufficiently high calibre to ensure the Committee 

observateurs ont ete sous le feu d'un poste 
frontiere yougoslave ; a Ia frontiere bulgare, les 
observateurs ont remarque trois fois que les 
partisans franchissaient Ia frontiere et deux 
observateurs ont ete blesses par des eclats d'obus 
tires de Bulgarie. Ces observations n'ont pas trait 
a des incidents isoles, mais portent sur une serie 
d'incidents observes jusqu'a Ia mi-octobre. Ils 
sont done la preuve d'un intervention directe 
contre la Grece de la part de I' Albanie, de la 
Bulgarie et de la Yougoslavie. II ne sert a rien 
de pretendre que les Gouvernements de ces 
Etats ne sont pas au courant des faits, car il va 
sans dire que, en droit international, un Gouver
nement doit repondre de ce qui se passe sur son 
territoire et particulierement a ses frontieres. 
Aucun des arguments utilises par M. Vychinsky 
n'a refute ces faits d'observation directe. 

De plus, Ia non-cooperation des trois Etats 
septentrionaux de la Grece et du general Markos 
avec la Commission speciale, en ce qui concerne 
les groupes d'observations, constitue une preuve 
indirecte de cette aide car, si ces trois Etats et les 
partisans n'avaient rien a cacher, ils n'auraient 
pas refuse leur cooperation. 

En outre, aucune des delegations qui appuient 
la delegation de l'URSS n'a declare ou laisse 
entendre que, si un acte d'intervention etait 
etabli, elle le deplorerait. Elles n'ont pas non plus 
declare qu'elles desapprouveraient le principe 
meme de !'intervention. Cela n'est pas etonnant 
car la non-intervention serait contraire a leur 
politique. II ne faut pas etre grand prophete pour 
affirmer que ni la Yougoslavie, ni la Tchecos
lovaquie, ni la Pologne, ni la RSS de Bielorussie, 
ni la RSS d'Ukraine, ni la Bulgarie, ni l'Albanie, 
ne diront jamais qu'elles n'approuvent p~s ces 
incidents de frontiere, a les supposer etabhs, car 
ces incidents constituent en n~alite les instruments 
de la politique etrangere de certains pays ~ont 
!'interet est de miner I'independance econom1que 
de la Grcce et de renverser le Gouvernement 
grec actuel. 

Comme l'a fait remarquer M. Dulles, la difficulte 
qu'a rencontree la Commission spec~ale n'a ~as 
consiste a trouver des preuves de I'mterventwn 
des trois voisins septentrionaux de Ia Grece ; elle 
est de mettre fin a ces activites regrettables pour 
la Grece. 

Il y a trois facteurs a ne pas perdre de vue : 
1) si la Premiere Commission conside~e q~e l_a 
preuve de !'intervention dans les affmre~ m.te
rieures de la Grece est faite, elle a l'obhgatwn 
d'apporter, pour le moins, son appui I??r~l a I~ 
Grece ; 2) s'il reste un espoir de conc1hahon, 11 
faut que I'on trouve un moyen de do~ner ~orps 
a cet espoir. A ce sujet, la delegation bntan?1que, 
tout en n'ayant pas encore etudie le pro3et de 
resolution de I'Australie (A/C.1/362), en c?mpr~nd 
les raisons, mais est d'avis que cette r~solut~on 
devrait etre examinee apres le projet de resolutl?n 
commun des quatre Puissances., Quant au p~o]et 
de resolution de la Nouvelle-Zelande, suggerant 
la creation de deux organes distincts - un corps 
d'observateurs et un comite de bons offices - la 
delegation du Royaume-Uni estime que cette 
proposition n' est pas souhaitable ca: les I?embres 
de la Commission speciale devrment etre des 

392 



s~~cient prestige to engage in diplomatic nego
tlatwns whenever the need arose. The United 
Kingdom delegation did not share the doubts 
expressed by other delegations about the dual 
functions of the Special Committee for the Balkans 
since it was by basing itself on its own observ~ 
ations that the Committee was best able to 
fulfil its mission of conciliation. Those two 
functions were complementary. It should be 
noted, however, that there was no hope of the 
differences between Greece and her northern 
neighbours being settled, so long as Albania, 
Bulgaria and Yugoslavia declined to co-operate 
with the Committee ; (3) if the Commission 
were to be continued, it should be made to have 
a deterrent effect upon Greece's northern neigh
bours. In that regard, the United Kingdom 
delegation was persuaded that, however unfa
vourable the situation in Greece, it would have 
been much worse if the observer groups had not 
been there. It was for that reason, as the 
Australian representative had pointed out, that 
the headquarters of the Commission should not 
be confined to a too-limited area, as had been 
the case the previous year. 

It was inconceivable that the representatives 
of Yugoslavia, the USSR and other countries 
should be completely unaffected by the expression 
of world opinion voiced in the First Committee, 
an opinion which was almost unqualified in its 
hostility to their attitude towards Greece. If, 
even at that moment, the three Governments of 
the countries on Greece's northern frontiers were 
to display the least desire to re-establish normal 
diplomatic relations with that country, the 
Committee would consider such action as a great 
service to the Greek people and to the cause of 
peace. That was why the United Kingdom 
delegation believed that the Australian draft 
resolution should not be put aside. Whatever the 
attitude of the various States towards the present 
Greek Government, a vote should be taken 
taking note that the facts reported by the Special 
Committee had been established, and sympathy 
for Greece should be expressed in the hope that 
normal relations would be restored in that part 
of Europe. 

Colonel HoDGSON (Australia) stated that, 
because of the nature of the subject matter of the 
two proposals submitted by his delegation, he 
would first give the reasons for submitting the 
second draft resolution (AJC.l/362), and reserve 
the right to revert to the first draft resolution 
(A/C.l/361). 

Recalling the preamble to the Mexican reso
lution (A/662) calling upon the great Powers to 
compose their differences, Colonel Hodgson consi
dered that the principles set out in the first two 
paragraphs of that resolution should be applied at 
the present stage of the discussion on the Greek 
question. 

He also referred to a recent address by Mr. Evatt 
to the Carnegie Endowment for International 
Peace, and said that the middle and smaller 
Powers could play an active part in favour of 
mediation and conciliation, as had been shown 
by the discussions in the First Committee in 

personnalites d'une telle reputation qu'ils conferent 
a la Commission assez de prestige pour lui 
permettre d'entrer eventuellement dans des nego
ciations diplomatiques. La delegation du Royaume 
Uni ne partage pas les doutes exprimes par 
d'autres delegations sur la dualite des fonctions 
de la Commission speciale pour les Balkans, car 
c'est en se fondant sur ses propres observations 
que la Commission est le mieux a meme de 
remplir sa mission de conciliation. Ces deux 
missions sont complementaires. II faut noter 
cependant, qu'aucun espoir de resoudre les 
differends entre la Grece et ses voisins septen
trionaux n'est permis tant que l'Albanie, la 
Bulgarie et la Yougoslavie se refuseront a cooperer 
avec la Commission ; 3) si la Commission continue 
ses travaux, il faut faire en sorte qu'elle exerce 
a l'egard des voisins septentrionaux de la Grece 
un effet preventif. La delegation du Royaume-Uni 
est persuadee a ce sujet que, quoique la situation 
en Grece ne soit pas brillante, elle etlt ete bien 
pire sans la presence d'observateurs. C'est pour
quai, comme l'a fait remarquer le representant 
de l'Australie, il ne faudrait pas, comme cela a 
ete le cas l'an passe, que la Commission soit 
obligee de maintenir son quartier general dans 
une zone etroitement limitee. 

II est inconcevable que les representants de la 
Yougoslavie, de l'URSS et d'autres pays ne soient 
nullement touches par I' opinion publique mondiale 
qui s'exprime au sein de la Premiere Commission, 
opinion qui, presque sans reserve, est hostile a 
leur attitude a l'egard de la Grece. Si les trois 
Gouvernements des voisins septentrionaux de 
la Grece manifestaient meme a ce moment le 
moindre desir de reprendre des relations diplo
matiques normales avec la Grece, la Commission 
considererait que cet acte constitue un grand service 
ala cause de la Grece et de la paix. C'est pourquoi 
la delegation du Royaume-Uni croit qu'il ne 
faudrait pas repousser le projet de resolution de 
l' Australie. Toutefois, quels que soient les sen
timents que l'on puisse eprouver a l'egard du 
Gouvernement grec actuel, il faudrait, constater 
par un vote que les faits d'intervention rapportes 
par la Commission Speciale sont etablis, et 
formuler une motion de sympathie a l'egard de 
la Grece dans l'espoir que des relations normales 
seront retablies dans cette region de !'Europe. 

Le colonel HoDGSON (Australie) declare que, 
etant donne le contenu des deux propositions 
presentees par sa delegation, il exposera d'abord 
les raisons pour lesquelles elle a presente le 
second pro jet de resolution (A/C.l /362), se 
reservant le droit de revenir sur le premier 
projet (A/C.l/361). 

Rappelant le preambule de la resolution 
mexicaine (A/662) invitant les grandes Puissances 
a resoudre leurs differends, le colonel Hodgson 
estime que les principes enonces aux deux premiers 
paragraphes de cette resolution devraient etre 
appliques a ce stade de la discussion sur la question 
grecque. 

Rappelant egalement une allocution recente 
de M. Evatt a la Fondation Carnegie pour la 
paix, il fait remarquer que les petites et moyennes 
Puissances peuvent jouer un rMe actif e~ f~veur 
de la mediation et de la conciliation, ams1 que 
les debats de la Premiere Commission l'ont 

393 



connexion with the first three items on its agenda. 

The essence of the General Assembly resolution 
109 (II) of 1947 had been an appeal to Albania, 
Bulgaria and Yugoslavia on the one hand, and 
to Greece on the other, to co-operate in the 
settlement of their disputes by peaceful means 
and, in particular, to re-establish normal diplo
matic and good-neighbourly relations among 
themselves. That recommendation, which was 
also contained in the draft resolution of the four 
Powers, had unfortunately so far remained a 
dead letter, for the four Governments concerned 
had not met to discuss their dificrences. Unless 
the problem were considered from another point 
of view, the deadlock was likely to continue. As 
the four Governments concerned had delegations 
in Paris during the General Assembly session and 
as no delegation had objected to the Australian 
delegation's suggestion, the representatives of the 
four States concerned might meet to try to reach 
agreement. The representatives of the United 
States and Cuba had issued an appeal for co
operation that morning ; many other represen
tatives had asked the Australian delegation to 
pursue its efiorts in that direction. It would, 
indeed, be difficult to oppose that proposal, 
inasmuch as everyone was speaking of co
operation but no one had as yet advanced any 
practical proposals. 

It was hardly necessary to point out that the 
Special Committee itself recommended that the 
General Assembly should consider ways and 
means of obtaining the co-operation of Albania, 
Bulgaria and Yugoslavia with the Special 
Committee. 

Should the Australian proposal be adopted it 
would be preferable for the meetings of the four 
Powers concerned to be held in private, so as to 
obviate any possibility of propaganda and ensure 
that a real attempt would be made to secure 
agreement. If those meetings did not produce 
agreement they might at least facilitate a gradual 
settlement of differences and clarify some of the 
points. That would be a starting point for the 
Special Committee in its work of mediation. 

The Australian delegation felt sure that if the 
President of the Assembly and the Secretary
General of the United Nations attended those 
meetings, the First Committee would be in a better 
position to submit to the General Assembly a 
draft resolution which might help to advance the 
cause of peace in the Balkans. 

Colonel Hodgson pointed out that that proposal 
was not an amendment to, or in substitution of, 
any other proposal. It was a new proposal which 
should be considered first. Indeed, if it were 
adopted, the suggested meetings of the four 
States concerned might take place while the 
First Committee was still discussing the Greek 
question. The results of those meetings might 
influence the attitude of delegations in regard to 
the various draft resolutions before the First 
Committee. 

Mr. BEELER (Yugoslavia) stated that, as his 
country was the one mainly interested in the 

montre au cours de la discussion des trois premiers 
points de son ordre du jour. 

La resolution de l'Assemblee generale 109 (II) 
de l'an passe demandait essentiellement a l'Albanie 
Ia Bulgarie et Ia Yougoslavie d'une part, eta la 
Grece d'autre part, de cooperer dans Ie reglement 
de leurs differends par des moyens pacifiques 
et en particulier de retablir des relations diplo
matiques et de bon voisinage normales. Mais, 
cette recommandation, qui se trouve egalement 
dans le projet de resolution des quatre Puissances, 
est malheureusement restee lettre morte jusqu'a 
present parce que les quatre Gouvernements 
interesses ne se sont pas rencontres pour discuter 
de leurs differends. L'impasse risque de persister 
si on n'etudie pas le probleme d'un autre point de 
vue. Comme les quatre Gouvernements interesses 
ont une delegation presente a Paris pendant Ia 
dun~e de la session de l'Assemblee generale et 
qu'aucune delegation ne s'est opposee a cette 
suggestion de la delegation australienne, les 
representants des quatre Etats en question 
pourraient se reunir pour rechercher un accord. 
Les representants des Etats-Unis et de Cuba ont 
lance ce matin un appel ala cooperation; nombre 
d'autres representants ont demande ala delegation 
australienne de continuer ses efforts en ce sens. ll 
serait d'ailleurs difficile de s'opposer a cette 
proposition etant donne que chacun parle de 
cooperation mais que personne n'a encore presente 
de proposition concrete. 

Faut-il souligner que la Commission speciale 
recommande, elle aussi, que l' Assembh~e generale 
examine les moyens d'obtenir Ia cooperation ~e 
l'Albanie, de Ia Bulgarie et de Ia Yougoslav1e 
avec la Commission speciale. 

Si la proposition australienne etait adoptee, il 
serait preferable que les reunions des quatre 
Puissances en question aient lieu a huis clos, ~e 
favon qu'on ne s'y livre pas a Ia propagande maiS 
a la recherche reelle d'un accord. Si ces reunions 
n'aboutissaient pas a un accord, tout au moins 
pourraient-elles faciliter un regleJ?ent . des 
differends par etapes et elucider certams pomts, 
ce qui constituerait une base de depart, P.ou~ la 
Commission speciale dans sa tache de med1at~on. 

La delegation de l' Australie esti~e. que. s1. le 
President de I' Assemblee et le Secreta1re general 
de !'Organisation des Nations Unies assistaie~t 
a ces reunions la Premiere Commission pourra~t 
ensuite plus ;isement presenter a I' Assemble~ 
generale un projet de resolution de nature a 
faciliter l'etablissement de la paix dans les 
Balkans. 

Le colonel Hodgson fait remarquer que. cette 
proposition n'est ni un amendement ill une 
substitution a aucune autre proposition. C'est une 
proposition nouvelle, mais qui devrait _et~e 
examinee en premier lieu. En effet, si elle ~ta1t 
adoptee, la reunion envisagee des quatre Etats 
interesses pourrait avoir lieu pendant que. la 
Premiere Commission discute encore Ia questlon 
grecque. Les resultats de ces entrevues pourraient 
influencer !'attitude des delegations a l'egard des 
differents projets de resolution actuellement 
soumis a la Premiere Commission. 

M. BEBLER (Yougoslavie) declare que son ~ays 
etant le principal interesse a l'examen du probleme 

394 



consideration of the Greek problem, he would like 
to submit certain entirely new facts and evidence 
to the Committee. His statement would take 
about two hours. He therefore asked permission 
not to speak for the moment, and said he would 
make a statement later in the discussion. 

Thee·- CHAIRl\fA.N said he would· ascertain the 
views of the Committee on the request made by 
the Yugoslav representative. After a discussion 
between the latter and the Chairman on the uoint 
of procedure involved, General RoMuLo (Philip
pines) stated that he was prepared to address the 
Committee in place of the Yugoslav representative. 

General RoMuLo (Philippines) desired to make 
a brief reply to the personal attacks made on him 
in his absence by Mr. Vyshinsky at an earlier 
meeting. He was astonished that the USSR 
representative should thus have misused his 
great gifts of oratory, especially as the whole 
world was following the discussions. 

Mr. Vyshinsky had taken offence because the 
representative of the Philippines had said that the 
USSR resolution was cynical, impertinent and an 
insult to the intelligence of the Committee. 
Mr. Vyshinsky's sensitiveness on that occasion 
did not appear to go well with the violent language 
which he had himself used when he said more than 
once that the report was " garbage " fit only to be 
thrown into th,e garbage can. 

The report of the Special Committee (A/644, 
Chapter IV) found that the partisans had received 
assistance from Greece's three neighbour States 
and recommended (A/644, paragraph. 69) that the 
General Assembly should issue a serious warning 
to th.e above-mentioned three States on the 
matter of that assistance. What did th.e USSR 
proposal do ? It declared that th.e Greek 
Government was anti-democratic, that it should 
not resist the rebels, that Greece was responsible 
for the situation in the Balkans, and that the 
Special Committee should put an end to its 
activities. 

It was not therefore too much to say that that 
proposal was cynical, that was to say, ironical, 
sarcastic and contemptuous, for its object was 
nothing less than to propose that the General 
Assembly should leave one of its Members in a 
desperate situation. That proposal was also 
impertinent in both senses of the word : first, 
because it was irrelevant, and also because it 
took no account of the conclusions of the Special 
Committee. Finally, it was an insult to the 
intelligence of the members of the Committee ; 
that purely personal opinion probably reflected 
the views of most of the other delegations. 
Undoubtedly General Romulo had used vigorous 
language, but he had never employed any expres
sion of that kind ad hominem. His delegation 
had spoken warmly on the Greek question because 
it felt special sympathy for Greece and a general 
concern for justice. The Philippines, as a small 
nation, was aware of the limits of its power, 
but would not hesitate to act whenever justice 
required it to do so. 

grec, il voudrait presenter a la'"tommission des 
faits et des preuves entierement nouveaux, ce 
qui lui demandera environ deux heures. Il demande 
en consequence a pouvoir renoncer momen
tanement a son tour de parole quitte a intervenir 
dans les debats ulterieurement. 

LE PRESIDENT declare qu'il consultera la 
Commission sur la demande formulee par le 
representant de la Yougoslavie. Apres line 
discussion entre le representant de la Yougoslavie 
et le President sur ce point de procedure, le 
general Ro::vmw (Philippines) declare qu'il est 
pret a parler a la place du representant de la 
Yougoslavie. 

Le general RoMULO (Philippines) tient a 
repondre briEwement aux attaques personnelles 
formulecs contre lui, en son absence, a une 
seance precedente par l\1. Vychinsky. II s'etonne 
que le representant de l'URSS ait ainsi avili son 
grand talent d'orateur, alors que le monde entier 
a les yeux fixes sur ces debats. 

M. Vychinsky s'est offusque de ce que le repre
sentant des Philippines ait pu dire que la resolution 
sovietique etait cynique, impertinente et cons
tituait une insulte a !'intelligence de la Commission. 
La sensibilite dont M. Vychinsky a fait preuve a 
cette occasion ne semble pas aller de pair avec 
le langage violent que lui-meme a employe 
lorsqu'il a dit a plusieurs reprises que le rapport 
etait une (( ordure )) tout au plus bonne a jeter 
ala boite a ordures. 

Le rapport de la Commission speciale (A/644, 
chapitre IV) conclut que les partisans ont rec;u 
de l'aide des trois Etats voisins de la Grece 
et recommande (A/644, paragraphe 69) que 
1' Assemblee generale adresse un serieux avertis
sement aux trois Etats susmentionnes au sujet 
de cette aide. Or, que pretend la proposition 
de I'URSS ? Elle affirme que le Gouvernement 
grec est antidemocratique, qu'il ne doit ~as 
opposer de resistance aux rebelles, que la Grece 
est responsable de la situation dans les Balkans 
et que la Commission speciale doit cesser ces 
activites. 

Il n'est done pas exagere de dire que cette 
proposition est cynique, c'est-a-dire. iro~iq~e, 
sarcastique, meprisante car elle ne vise a nen 
moins qu'a proposer que I'Assemblee generale 
abandonne un de ses membres dans une situation 
desesperee. Cette proposition est aussi imper
tinente dans les deux sens du mot : d'abord parce 
qu'elle manque de pertinence, et ensuit~ parce 
qu'elle ne tient aucun compte des conclu.swns de 
la Commission speciale. Enfin, elle constitue une 
insulte a !'intelligence des membres de la Com
mission, et cette opinion purement personnelle 
reflete peut-etre celle de la plupart des a~tres 
delegations ; sans doute, le langage employ~ par 
le representant des Philippines a-t-il ete energique, 
mais jamais il n'a use d'expression ?~ c~ genre 
ad hominem. Si la delegation des Phihppmes est 
intervenue avec chaleur dans l'affaire grecqu~, 
c'est parce qu'elle eprouve une sympathi~ pa~ti
culiere pour la Grece et par sentiment d~ ~us~Ice. 
En tant que petite nation, les Phihppmes 
connaissent les limites de leur pouvoir mai.s el~es 
n'hesiteront pas a agir chaque fois que la JUStiCe 
le requerra. 

395 



Mr. ANDERSEN (Denmark) said that his dele
gation had not taken any final decision on the 
various amendments and on the Australian draft 
resolution, but that, in principle, it would vote 
for the joint resolution of the four Powers. 
However, it desired to support the observations 
made some days previously on the Greek problem 
by Mr. Rey, the Belgian representative. 

The meeting rose at 12.50 p.m. 

HUNDRED AND EIGHTY-FOURTH 
MEETING 

Held at the Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
on Friday, 5 November 1948, at 3.00 p.m. 

Chairman : Mr. A. CosTA DU RELS (Bolivia). 

50. Continuation of the discussion on the 
threats to the political independence 
and territorial integrity of Greece 

REPORTS OF THE UNITED NATIONS SPECIAL 
COMMISSION ON THE BALKANS (A/574, A/644 
AND A/692) 

Mr. BEBLER (Yugoslavia) recalled that the 
Rapporteur of the Special Committee, Mr. Castillo 
Najera, had made a great effort to disprove his 
statement that no Greek children had been taken 
forcibly from their homes by guerrillas. 
Mr. Castillo Najera had, however, been unable 
to quote any Greek mother as saying that her 
child had been forcibly abducted. He had endeav
oured to prove his case by citing annex II of 
document A/574 which contained the factual 
findings of the Special Committee in the matter. 
But the evidence contained therein did not 
support Mr. Castillo Najera's assertion. Pa
ragraph 1 merely contained declarations by 
several witnesses, mainly village mayors appointed 
by the monarchist Government, that children 
had been forcibly carried off. But there was not 
one statement to that effect by the parents 
concerned. Paragraph 2 stated that parents of 
three villages were either opposed to letting 
their children go or had taken their children away 
into hiding in order that they should not be 
carried off. There was no mention of any 
children having been forcibly abducted. On the 
contrary, paragraph 3 contained abundant 
evidence, from five villages, that children had 
been taken across the border only at the desire 
of their parents and that most of those who had 
gone had been the children of guerrillas 

It was noteworthy that the Special Committee's 
report had omitted to mention the principal 
cause of the children's flight. In paragraph 4 
of the annex to which Mr. Castillo Najera had 
referred, it was said that parents had sent their 
children out of Greece, either out of sympathy 
for the guerrillas, or because of poverty and 
lack of educational facilities, or thirdly, in order 
to preserve them from the dangers of the fighting. 
However, the real cause, which the Special 

M. ANDERSEN (Danemark) declare que sa 
delegation n'a pas pris de decision finale au sujet 
des divers amendements et du projet de resolution 
de l'Australie mais que, en principe, elle votera 
pour la resolution commune des quatre Puissances. 
Cependant, elle tient a s'associer aux observations 
presentees il y a quelques jours au sujet du 
probleme grec par M. Rey, representant de la 
Belgique. 

La seance est levee a 12 h. 50. 

CENT-QUATRE-VINGT-QUATR!.EME 
SEANCE 

Tenue au Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
le vendredi 5 novembre 1948, a 15 heures. 

President : M. A. CosTA DU RELS (Bolivie). 

50. Suite de la discussion surlesmenaces 
a l'independance politique eta l'inte
grite territoriale de la Grece 

RAPPORTS DE LA CoMMISSION SPECIALE DES 

NATIONS UNIES POUR LES BALKANS (A/574. 
A/644 ET A/692). 

M. BEBLER (Yougoslavie) rappelle que le 
Rapporteur de la Commission speciale, M. Castillo 
Najera, s'est donne beaucoup de mal pour refuter 
sa declaration, etablissant qu'aucun enfant grec 
n'avait ete arrache de force a son foyer par les 
partisans grecs. M. Castillo Najera a toutefois ete 
incapable de citer une seule mere grecque qui eflt 
declare que son enfant avait ete emmene de force. 
II a voulu prouver ses dires en citant l'annexe 2 du 
document A/574, qui contient les faits etablis par 
la Commission speciale en matiere. Or, les 
temoignages que contient ce document ne corro
borent nullement !'assertion de M. Najera. Au 
paragraphe 1, on trouve simplement plusieurs 
declarations de temoins, principalement des 
maires de villages, nommes par le Gouvernement 
monarchiste, selon lesquelles des enfants auraient 
ete emmenes de force. Mais il n'existe pas une 
seule declaration analogue cmanant des parents 
interesses. Au paragraphe 2, il est dit que dans 
trois villages les parents se seraient opposes au 
depart de leurs enfants ou les auraient caches 
pour eviter qu'ils ne fussent enleves. II n'y est 
fait nulle mention d'enfants emmenes de force. 
Par contre, le paragraphe 3 contient une abon
dance de temoignages, recueillis dans cinq 
villages, attestant que l'on n'a fait passer la 
frontiere a des enfants que sur le desir de leurs 
parents, la plupart des evacues, d'ailleurs, etant 
enfants de partisans. 

II convient de noter que le rapport de la 
Commission speciale passe sous silence la princi
pale cause de la fuite des enfants. Au paragraphe 4 
de l'annexe citee par M. Castillo Najera, il est 
dit que des parents ont envoye leurs enfants a 
l'etranger soit par sympathie pour les partisans, 
soit en raison de leur pauvrete et du manque des 
moyens necessaires a leur instruction, soit, enfin. 
pour les preserver des dangers de la guerre. Mais 
la vraie cause que la Commission speciale a omis 

396 




